
 

Page 1 of 52 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JULY 24, 2019 

5:30 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order and Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes of July 10, 2019. 

Public Comments 

Old Business 

New Business 

2. PC-2 District Site Plan Review 
Location: 918 Viking Road 
Applicant: HI YIELD, LLC and CGA Engineers 
Previous discussion: None  
Recommendation: Recommend approval 
P&Z Action: Review and make recommendation to City Council 

3. HWY-1 District Site Plan Review – Amendment to previously approved Site Plan 
Location: Lot 2, Gateway Business Park Subdivision 
Applicant: Martin Rouse, Fehr-Graham, Peters Construction, AHTS Architects 
Previous discussion: May 8, 2019, May 22, 2019 
Recommendation: Recommend approval 
P&Z Action: Review and make recommendation to City Council 

4. Park Ridge Estates Final Plat 
Location: 20.8 acres property at the north end of Lakeshore Drive 
Applicant: Wingert Development, CGA Engineering 
Previous discussion: None 
Recommendation: Recommend approval 
P&Z Action: Review and make recommendation to City Council 

Commission Updates 

Adjournment 

Reminders: 

* August 14th and August 28th Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
* August 5th and August 19th City Council Meetings 

  

1



 1 

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting 

July 10, 2019 
City Hall Council Chambers 

220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

MINUTES 
 

The Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission met in regular session on Wednesday, July 10, 
2019 at 5:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. The 
following Commission members were present: Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Prideaux, 
and Wingert. Leeper and Saul were absent. Karen Howard, Community Services Manager and David 
Sturch, Planner III, were also present. 
 
1.) Mayor Brown was present to thank the Commission for their service and to recognize 

Commission member Deb Giarusso for her time on the Commission. He presented her with a 
commemorative plaque and thanked her for work. 

 
2.) Chair Holst noted the Minutes from the June 26, 2017 regular meeting are presented. Mr. 

Wingert made a motion to approve the Minutes as presented. Mr. Larson seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, 
Larson, Prideaux, and Wingert), and 0 nays.  

 
3.) The first item of business was The Terraces at West Glen preliminary plat. Chair Holst 

introduced the item and Mr. Wingert recused himself from the discussion due to a conflict of 
interest. Mr. Sturch provided background information, noting the plat is comprised of 240 
acres, with 42 acres purchased to the north for The Terraces at West Glen. He discussed the 
right-of-way dedication, recreational trails and waterway and stormwater detention. He also 
provided information regarding the current and proposed floodplain boundary. He explained 
that the plat conforms with the RP Zoning and land use amendment with the NewAldaya 
master plan development for the 55+ campus. The Deed of Dedication should reflect this 
development plan and elements listed in the Development Agreement. Staff recommends 
approval of the item.  

 
 Chair Holst stated that the item has been well vetted in past meetings and while the big 

concern has been the water, the issue will be improved. 
 
 Ms. Giarusso made a motion to approve the plat. Ms. Prideaux seconded the motion. The 

motion was approved with 6 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Larson and Prideaux), 0 
nays and 1 abstention (Wingert). 

 
4.) The next item for consideration by the Commission was the final plat for Greenhill Village 

Townhomes II, Phase I. Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Wingert recused himself from 
this item due to a conflict of interest. Ms. Howard provided background information. She 
explained that the property is located south of Greenhill Road and east of Hudson Road in the 
Greenhill Village neighborhood. She displayed the proposed final plat and explained the 
drainage and site layout. She noted that this is just the first phase of the subdivision and 
includes one buildable lot that will allow construction of two buildings; one with five townhomes 
and one with four townhomes.  It also includes Outlot B that is reserved for future development 
and will also direct stormwater to the detention basin in Tract B to the east. Access to the 
townhomes will be from a rear private drive off of Lloyd Lane. She explained that the final plat 
is consistent with the MU District Master Plan and the previously approved preliminary plat. 
Staff recommends approval.  

2

Item 1.



 2 

 
 Chris Noland, 1510 Athens Court, asked that the project not be approved until the total plat is 

submitted. He doesn’t believe the townhomes blend into the character of the neighborhood.  
 
 Tim Tjarks, 1521 Athens Court, stated that he would also like to see a final plat of the entire 

development. He feels that single-family dwellings would be most appropriate in this area.  
 
 Steve Troskey, CGA Engineers, stated that the development group would be happy to present 

and approve all the buildings at one time, however this is a significant cost to installing the 
infrastructure, so that is why final plats many times are completed in phases.   

 
 Mary Ann Noland, 1510 Athens Court, stated that she doesn’t feel the buildings fit the 

character of the neighborhood and feels that the developer hasn’t communicated in a positive 
way with them. 

 
 Mr. Hartley asked for an explanation of how developments like this proceed. Ms. Howard 

described the approval process.  In summary, she stated that the City requires the owner to 
submit a preliminary plat of the entire holdings of the property owner for approval. All 
infrastructure must be completed or the property owner must submit a bond covering the cost 
of installation of the infrastructure prior to approval of a final plat, so it is typical for developers 
to submit a final plat in phases as it is often cost prohibitive to construct the entire platted area 
and all the infrastructure at one time.  

 
 Ms. Prideaux asked if the MU District encourages different types of housing. Ms. Howard 

clarified that it does and that there are other housing types throughout the neighborhood. 
 
 Chair Holst asked what was sent out to the neighborhood in the most recent mailing. Ms. 

Howard stated that the mailing was sent to a wider area than required, and explained that a 
cover letter and plat maps were sent out in the mailing.  

 
 Ms. Prideaux made a motion to approve the plat. Mr. Hartley seconded the motion. The motion 

was approved with 6 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Prideaux), 0 nays and 1 
abstention (Wingert). 

 
5.) The Commission then considered the Sands Addition final plat. Chair Holst introduced the item 

and Mr. Sturch provided background information. He explained that the property is located off 
Greenhill Road between Highway 58 and Main Street with 21 lots on just over 10 acres. He 
provided a rendering of the plat details, including stormwater detention, sanitary sewer and 
utility easement. Staff recommends approval of the plat with the stipulation of inclusion of the 
utility easement along the eastern border of the plat. 

 
 Wendell Lupkes, VJ Engineering, stated that they would like to see the Commission 

recommend that the plat be approved with the stipulation that the easement is not required as 
this has been a new proposal to them. 

 
 Mr. Sturch stated that the intent was not to put the sewer line in the easement. It would just be 

there for grading purposes.   
 
 Jim Sands, developer, doesn’t feel that the easement should be required.  
 
 Mr. Larson asked when the easement was added if it wasn’t in the preliminary plat. Mr. Sturch 

stated that it was a comment sent through internal Tech Review discussion. It was not on the 
preliminary plat. Ms. Howard stated that the challenge is that there are a lot of properties that 
will be landlocked with the subdivision and staff will need to accommodate future requests for 

3

Item 1.



 3 

development and installation of sewer connections if septic systems fail.   
 
 Mr. Lupkes agreed and stated that it was discussed during the preliminary plat work and the 

sewer that comes in down the road will only benefit other properties outside the subdivision.  
 
 Mr. Larson doesn’t feel it will be fair to subject the new easement stipulation on people who 

are already committed to the lots based on the preliminary plat.  
 
 Mr. Larson made a motion to approve the plat as submitted without the easement. Ms. 

Giarusso seconded the motion. The motion was approved with 5 ayes (Giarusso, Hartley, 
Holst, Larson and Wingert), and 2 nays (Adkins and Prideaux). 

 
6.) The next item of business was a downtown façade review for new signage at 100 E. 2nd 

Street, Suite 103. Chair Holst introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background 
information. She explained that the sign requires review as it projects out over the public right-
of-way. She provided the sign details and stated that all requirements are met and staff 
recommends approval. 

 
 Mr. Hartley made a motion to approve. Prideaux seconded the motion. The motion was 

approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Prideaux and 
Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
7.)  As there were no further comments, Mr. Hartley made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Wingert 

seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, 
Hartley, Holst, Larson, Prideaux, and Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:37 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Howard       Joanne Goodrich  
Community Services Manager    Administrative Clerk 
 

4

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: July 17, 2019 

 SUBJECT: PC-2 District Site Plan Review – 918 Viking Road 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve a PC-2 Planned Commercial District Site Plan for a new 
8,260 square foot retail building. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

HI YIELD LLC, Owner; Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc., Engineer 
 

LOCATION: 
 

918 Viking Road 
 

 

  
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to construct an 8,260 
square foot commercial building (in 
blue outline to the right) which will 
provide room for two tenants. The 
overall development plan for the 
property includes a 55,000 square 
foot gym/retail building, and four 
commercial buildings totaling 
approximately 30,000 square feet.   
 
BACKGROUND 
The property was rezoned by the 
City Council from A-1 Agricultural 
District to PC-2 Planned Commercial 
District on September 19, 2016. A 
site plan for just the gymnasium/retail building was approved by the City Council on December 
15, 2016 after a unanimous recommendation of approval from the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. During the review of the gymnasium/retail building site plan in 2016, a general 
design of the 4 outbuildings was presented, however those buildings were not part of the 
original site plan approval. A site plan was presented for Outbuilding #3 at the northeast corner 
of the property, and was approved by City Council on August 21, 2017. Then, on October 16, 
2017, a revised site plan for the gymnasium/retail building was approved by City Council, which 
added approximately 10,000 square feet of building area and added a parking area behind the 
building. A site plan was presented for Outbuilding #1 at the northwest corner of the property, 
and was approved by City Council on December 3, 2018.  

5

Item 2.



ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned PC-2, Planned Commercial District. The PC-2 District is a predominantly 
commercial project containing retail and general service facilities on larger tracts of land that is 
designed and improved in accordance with a comprehensive project plan and developmental 
procedures agreement. It is further the purpose of these regulations to encourage high 
standards of building architecture and site planning which will foster commercial development 
that maximizes pedestrian convenience, comfort and pleasure. 
 
As indicated in the Background section, several site plan reviews on this property have already 
been approved. The overall development plan for the property shows a total of five buildings; 
one has already been completed, and two are currently under construction. This approval is for 
the fourth of five buildings. A detailed site plan review of each building when it is proposed to be 
constructed is required to ensure that the development site satisfies a number of standards.  
Details such as building design and location, parking, signage, dumpster location, and other 
similar criteria are reviewed to ensure orderly and quality development in the PC-2 Planned 
Commercial District. 
 
Following is a review of the zoning ordinance requirements: 
 
1) Proposed Use: The 8,260 square foot retail/professional office building is a permitted use in 

the PC-2 District. Use permitted. 
 
2) Setbacks: The setbacks apply to the building, parking lot and signage. The PC-2 District 

normally requires a 30-foot setback around the perimeter of the "district”. The PC-2 District 
also states that for areas less than 10 acres in size, that the setback area may be reduced 
to 20’, subject to review and approval from the Planning & Zoning Commission and City 
Council. The developer did ask that the 30 foot open space buffer setback be reduced to 
20 feet in width, which was approved by City Council.  

 
The proposed building is located 25 feet from the rear property line, which meets the 20 
foot minimum buffer requirement. The parking area is also shown approximately 50 feet 
from the south property line as well. Building and Parking Area setbacks are satisfied. 

 
3) Parking: The parking requirement was previously calculated for the entire development, 

which included the gymnasium building and 4 outbuildings. Based on the anticipated uses 
and sizes of the buildings within this shopping center, the total parking required for all of the 
uses is 340 parking stalls. The overall site plan showed 346 parking stalls, which meets the 
minimum requirement. For this parcel alone (918 Viking Rd), 37 parking stalls are shown. 
There is a shared parking agreement between the individual parcels that allow for shared 
parking between the properties. Parking requirements are satisfied. 

 
4) Open Space: Open green space must be provided on site. The ordinance requires 10% of 

the total development site excluding the required setback area. In this case the lot contains 
approximately 9 acres of land (400,000 ft²). When the perimeter setbacks are excluded  
(20-foot minimum), approximately 61,000 square feet can be deducted from the total: 
400,000-61,000=339,000 x 0.10 = 33,900 square feet open green space must be provided 
on site. The property has approximately 298,103 square feet of open space remaining, 
which far exceeds the minimum open space requirement. Open green space satisfied. 

 
5) Landscaping: The PC-2 District requires landscape plantings at the rate of 0.02 points per 

square foot of the total development site excluding the setback areas described above 
(0.02 x 339,000 ft²) = 6,780 basic site landscaping points. These points can be made up 

6

Item 2.



with any combination of trees, conifers and shrubbery and distributed throughout the site, 
parking areas and along the street. This parcel has no street frontage, so no street trees 
are required.  

 
In addition to these points, landscaping must also be provided to satisfy “parking lot 
landscaping.” The parking lot calculation must be “added” to the “site/street tree 
landscaping” number (6,780) to arrive at a total landscaping requirement for the property. 
The parking area landscaping requirement is one tree for every 15 parking stalls or 2,500 
square feet of hard surface parking area. If the one tree for every 15 stalls ratio is applied, 
the total tree planting for this portion of the parking lot would be 37/15 stalls = 3 trees. The 
plan for this portion of the development shows 3 parking lot trees. 
 
A landscaping plan for the overall site was submitted when the gymnasium building went 
through the site plan review process. All requirements were met at that time. For this 
portion of the development, the landscaping plan appears to be similar to what was 
submitted for the overall development and for the completed outbuilding #3, with trees 
located within the parking lot, and trees located around the building. Landscape Plan is 
acceptable.  

 
6) Sidewalks: A Sidewalk is identified along the building frontage. This sidewalk will connect 

this building to the building to the south, which will connect to the sidewalk that will be 
installed along Viking Road. Sidewalk plan is acceptable, and will be installed in 
conjunction with the construction of this building. 

 
7) Building Design: The proposed building will be constructed with a mixture of rock faced 

block (gray), Cumaru wood shiplap siding, glass windows and doors, and two tones of 
corrugated metal paneling (silver and charcoal). Wall signage will also be located above 
each doorway. This building design is the same as Outbuilding #1 and #3, which was 
previously approved. Overall Building Design is acceptable. 

 
 

8) Trash Dumpsters: The dumpster enclosure will be located just to the southeast of the 
building, between the gymnasium building and the proposed building. A dumpster 
enclosure plan was submitted when the gymnasium building was proposed that included a 
6’ split face block wall with a slated gate for access. Dumpster enclosure plan is 
acceptable.   

 
9) Storm Water Management: There are two underground storm water collection areas 

located under the parking lot in front of Outbuilding #1 and Outbuilding #3. These detention 
basins release the water into the storm sewer located along Viking Road. Also, there is a 
storm water detention area located to the southwest of the gymnasium building. Water from 
around the gymnasium building and areas south of the gymnasium building will go to this 
detention pond. This overall storm water management plan was reviewed and approved by 
the Engineering Division during the site plan review of the gymnasium building in 2016. An 

Front Design of Building 

7

Item 2.



individual SWPPP application and permit will be required for this building, and each 
remaining building, as they are being proposed. 

 
10) Lighting Plan: While not required by the PC-2 District 

requirements, a general lighting plan has been 
submitted and appears to be satisfactory. The 
applicant has provided information showing the 
location of 9 proposed light poles to be installed in 
front of the building and within the parking lot. The 
lighting fixtures will consist of LED die-cast 
aluminum box downlights.  

 
 
11) Signage: The PC-2 District permits wall signs to cover 20% of the surface area of any one 

wall space. However, no more than two wall faces can be utilized for signage in the PC-2 
District. Wall signage is identified on the front side of the building over each tenant space 
entry.  One main freestanding entrance sign is allowed adjacent to the adjoining major 
thoroughfare. Said sign shall not exceed 20 feet in height and 200 square feet in area. A 
freestanding entrance sign was shown on the original site plan submittal for the 
gymnasium building. Signage requirements appear to be met, but will be verified at 
the time of sign permit application. 

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, have few comments on the 
proposed site plan. All basic utility services are available to the site. The developer is required to 
provide all utility services to the building and must coordinate those improvements with CFU 
personnel. 
 
The City Engineering Division has had comments regarding their Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the site. A number of deficiencies were noted by City staff during 
several past site visits; however, those items have been addressed by the developer. The 
developer and contractor for the site will need to address any changes that occur as 
construction continues on the site with continued maintenance, weekly inspections, seeding 
during appropriate times, and use of SWPPP approved stabilization techniques. The City is 
requiring that the developer obtain an individual SWPPP permit for each of the remaining 
buildings on the site prior to construction to help maintain control of the site during the duration 
of the remaining construction on the site.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The introduction of this site plan is for discussion and public comment purposes. If the P&Z 
Commission is comfortable with the submitted site plan, it is their decision on whether to forward 
for additional P&Z Commission review on 8/14 or to approve the site plan on 7/24. The 
Community Development Department has reviewed this site plan and would recommend 
approval, subject to the following comments: 
 

1) Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
7/24/2019 

 
 

  
 

8

Item 2.



N
Pra

irie
La

ke

S Pra
irie

Lak
e

Technology
Park

Industrial
Park

Prairie
Lakes Park

CFU
Solar

Garden

Danish Dr

Enterprise Dr

Nordic Dr

Ch
an

ce
llo

r D
r

Savannah Park Rd

We
stm

ins
ter

Dr
Viking Rd

M-1

M-2

M-1-P

R-2

A-1

PC-2

University
of Northern

Iowa

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Black
Hawk
Park

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce
da

rHe i g
hts

Dr

Waterloo Rd Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

V ikin

gRd

W 18th St

University Ave

Greenhill Rd

Center St

E Dunkerton Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in 
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

NUnion Rd

Lincoln St

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rse
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

918 Viking Road - PC-2 District
Site Plan Review

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
July 24, 2019

9

Item 2.



10

Item 2.



11

Item 2.



12

Item 2.



13

Item 2.



14

Item 2.



15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



FROST PROOF STOOP

FROST 
PROOF 
STOOP

FROST 
PROOF 
STOOP

FROST 
PROOF 
STOOP

FROST 
PROOF 
STOOP

FROST PROOF STOOP

FUTURE SLAB ON GRADE - 
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

CONCRETE 
FLOOR SLAB @ 
MECH ROOM

FUTURE SLAB ON GRADE - 
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

Lease Space

Kitchen Dining

FUTURE SLAB ON GRADE - 
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

Mechanical
& Toilets

918 VIKING RD. - SHELL
Scale: 3/16" = 1'-0"

Full Building
Metal Panel - Charcoal 46%
Metal Panel - Silver 12%
Masonry - Gray  4%
Wood - Natural  6%
Painted Steel - White  7%
Fascia/Soffit - Silver  6%
Windows/Doors 19%

South Elevation
Metal Panel - Charcoal 28%
Metal Panel - Silver 16%
Masonry - Gray  4%
Wood - Natural  0%
Painted Steel - White 21%
Fascia/Soffit - Silver  5%
Windows/Doors 26%

East Elevation
Metal Panel - Charcoal 75%
Metal Panel - Silver  0%
Masonry - Gray  0%
Wood - Natural  0%
Painted Steel - White  3%
Fascia/Soffit - Silver  5%
Windows/Doors 17%

North Elevation
Metal Panel - Charcoal 28%
Metal Panel - Silver 12%
Masonry - Gray  5%
Wood - Natural 10%
Painted Steel - White 21%
Fascia/Soffit - Silver  5%
Windows/Doors 19%

West Elevation
Metal Panel - Charcoal 35%
Metal Panel - Silver 20%
Masonry - Gray  8%
Wood - Natural 10%
Painted Steel - White  2%
Fascia/Soffit - Silver  6%
Windows/Doors 19%

Material Percentages

SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

18
'-0

"
18

'-0
"

18
'-0

"

18
'-0

"

SIGNAGE

7/8" VERTICAL CORRUGATED METAL PANEL - CHARCOAL

7/8" VERTICAL CORRUGATED METAL PANEL - SILVER

ROCK FACED CEMENT MASONRY UNITS - GRAY COLOR

CUMARU WOOD SHIPLAP SIDING WITH NATURAL COLOR SEALER

GALVANIZED STEEL FRAME PAINTED BONE WHITE, 2 COATS OVER PRIMER, SEMI-GLOSS

STEEL SOFFIT AND FASCIA TRIM - SILVER

GALVANIZED STEEL CHANNEL PAINTED BONE WHITE, 2 COATS OVER PRIMER, SEMI-GLOSS

CUMARU WOOD 2 x 8 OUTLOOKERS WITH NATURAL COLOR SEALER

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF - GALVALUME

EXTERIOR FINISH GUIDE
NOTE: ALL EXTERIOR MATERIALS MUST HAVE A SAMPLE APPROVED BY THE

ARCHITECT BEFORE MATERIALS ARE ORDERED

8 x 8 GUTTER & 4 x 6 DOWNSPOUTS - CHARCOAL

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1

1 5

10

9

7

6

REAR ELEVATION - EAST
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

SIDE ELEVATION - SOUTH
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

SIDE ELEVATION - NORTH
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION - WEST
Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

1

15

10

9

7

6

1

121

3

1

7

1

5

6

9

1

1

3

121

7

1

5

10

6

9

4

4

8

7

4

4

5

6

9

4

43

5

6

9

8

7

3

1

1

1 2 2

1

1 2

1

1 2

2 3

1 2

2 1

1 2

2 1

1 2

3

1 2

1

1 2

1

1 4

4

8
7

6

1

1

2

2

1

1

3

1 2

1

1

2

1

1

5

9

7

6

3

Proposed Building for:

918 VIKING ROAD

18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: July 17, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Highway-1 District Site Plan Review 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Revised site plan approval for a new Dairy Queen restaurant and a 
convenience store/gas station/automobile service station. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Martin Rouse (developer); Fehr-Graham (engineer); Peters Construction 
(contractor); AHTS Architects (architect) 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Lot 2 of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The developer, Martin Rouse, received approval by 
City Council on June 3, 2019 for a site plan to 
construct a new DQ Grill and Chill restaurant and a 
convenience store/automobile service station on Lot 2 
of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I, which is 
located at the northeast corner of Hudson Road and 
W. Ridgeway Avenue (highlighted lot on the image to 
the right). Since the approval from City Council, the 
developer has received direction from corporate Dairy 
Queen to alter the site plan to separate the drive 
through lane from the parking area and to shift the 
location of the building. Therefore, this change to the 
site plan will require approval from the Planning & 
Zoning Commission and City Council. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Lots 1 and 2 of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls 
I, along with the stormwater detention basin parcel, 
were platted in June of 2018. Currently, a Holiday Inn 
& Suites Hotel and conference center is under 

Lot 2 – Proposed Project Location 

20

Item 3.



2 
 

construction on Lot 1. Cyber Lane, which was also approved as part of the plat, is currently 
under construction and will be completed in 2019. The City Council approved a site plan for this 
development on June 3, 2019.   
 
ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned HWY-1, Highway Commercial District, which is intended to promote 
general services commercial uses intended to serve a broader market area (i.e. City-wide or 
regional customer base). The property is also located within the Highway 20 Overlay District, 
which provides enhanced development guidelines for commercial uses located within this 
corridor. The ordinance requires detailed site plan review in order to ensure that the 
development site satisfies a number of basic aesthetic standards. Attention to details such as 
parking, open green space, landscaping, signage, building design and other similar factors help 
to ensure orderly development in the entire area. Following is a review of the zoning ordinance 
requirements: 
 

1) Use: No changes are being made to the approved use of the site. A restaurant is listed as 
a permitted use within the Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay District. A gas 
station/convenience store can also have a regional customer base, thus fitting within the 
permitted uses of the Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay District. A service station 
is listed as a conditional use within the Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Zoning District. A 
conditional use may be permitted within this district subject to approval by the Planning & 
Zoning Commission and City Council. The restaurant and convenience store are 
permitted uses. The service station is a conditional use, and exceeds the 
recommended setback guidelines from Hudson Road. 
 

2) Setbacks: 20-ft. setbacks are required along the edge of the district and along any internal 
streets/principal access ways. These areas must be landscaped. Open space and 
landscaping is shown on the plan within these areas. Both the restaurant and convenience 
store/service station buildings meet the setback requirements. No changes are being 
made to the location of the convenience store building. The DQ Grill & Chill building 
is moving further to the south on the lot, but will still meet all setback requirements. 
 

3) Parking/Access: The parking for the convenience store/auto service center is not being 
altered. For the DQ Grill & Chill building, parking is being shifted from the south side of the 
building to the north along the north property line (11 parking stalls). Also, the previous 
plan showed one-way traffic around the building. Parking to the west of the building will 
now be two-way traffic, with one-way traffic around the east of the building. The previous 
plan showed 11 angled parking stalls to the east of the building. Those stalls are being 
removed and added to the parking area west of the building. In all, 42 parking spaces 
were shown on the original site plan, and 42 spaces are shown on this revised plan. 
Overall, the submitted parking lot and access plan is satisfied.  

 

4) Open Green Space: This property is located within the Highway 20 Commercial Corridor 
Overlay Zoning District. This overlay district requires that open green space/landscape 
area be provided at the rate of 15% of the development site. The previously approved plan 
showed an open space area of 27.7% of the site. For this updated plan, additional green 
space has been added, which now equates to 29.9% of the site. Landscaping is shown 
throughout the site, both within the green space areas in the parking lot and around the 

21

Item 3.



3 
 

buildings and along the street frontages. The open green space exceeds the minimum 
requirement and is well distributed. 
 

5) Landscaping: The previously approved landscape plan showed a total of 8,100 points, 
whereas the required number of points for the site was 5,446. This landscaping was made 
up of parking lot trees, street trees, and general landscaping throughout the site. For the 
updated landscape plan, there are a total of 7,240 points shown, which is 860 points less 
than the original plan. Although the total number of points has been reduced, the revised 
landscape plan shows less Karl Forester Grass around the perimeter of the parking area 
and more hearty shrubbery, which provides more of a screen from the parking lot, but 
takes up additional space, so less shrubs are needed. Staff feels that this revised plan 
better screens the parking areas from the roadway, while still meeting the overall 
landscaping requirements. In total, there will be 64 trees and 259 shrubs and grasses 
planted on the site. Landscaping requirements are met. 
 

6) Sidewalks/Recreational Accommodations: A new 10-foot wide recreational trail will be 
installed along Hudson Road and W. Ridgeway Avenue. This will be completed by the 
current owner of the property (also the owner of the Holiday Inn & Suites Hotel). The 
previous site plan showed a connection from this trail to the property near the northwest 
corner of the property, west of the DQ building. This access has been moved to the south 
side of the DQ building on the revised plan, in order to allow easier access to the site from 
the trail without having to cross through the drive through lane and parking lot, and also 
due to the slope of the ground being higher at the northwest corner of the property. 
Trail/sidewalk plan satisfied. 

 

 

7) Building Design: The HWY-1, Highway Commercial District states that all structures 
established within the district shall be reviewed for architectural compatibility with 
surrounding structures. Items such as proportion, roof shape, pitch and direction, pattern, 
materials and texture, color, and architectural features were all reviewed during the 
previous site plan review. No changes to the building design for either building are being 
made. Overall, the design of the proposed restaurant and convenience store/gas 
station/auto service station is architecturally compatible with other buildings in the 
surrounding area.  

 
8) Trash Dumpster Site: The original site plan showed a trash enclosure on the restaurant 

site at the southeast corner of the property, within a full enclosure with a gate on the front. 
The updated site plan shifts the trash enclosure to the north side of the building, away 
from the view of the road. The enclosure will still be fully enclosed with a gate on the front 
like the original design. Dumpster enclosure plan is acceptable. 

 
9) Lighting Plan: The HWY-1 District regulations do not have specific lighting design 

guidelines. The site plan shows the location of light poles throughout the site. The parking 
lot lights will be mounted atop a 25’ tall light pole with a 3’ concrete base. The fixtures will 
be housed in a die-cast aluminum housing with LED lights. Also, recessed LED lighting 
will be provided under the gas canopy to provide light to the customers who are fueling 
their vehicles. Lighting plan is acceptable.  

 
 
 

22

Item 3.



4 
 

10) Signage: No changes to the approved signage plan are being made. For reference, there 
are three signs being proposed on the site: one at the southwest corner of the property 
near the intersection of Hudson Road and W. Ridgeway Avenue, one at the southeast 
corner of the property near the intersection of W. Ridgeway Avenue and Cyber Lane, and 
one near the northeast corner of the property at the main entrance to the property along 
Cyber Lane. Signage plan generally meets the standards, pending a detailed review 
at the time a sign permit is requested. 

 

11) Storm Water Management: A storm water detention basin is located at the north end of 
the property to collect the storm water runoff from the site. The water runoff from the 
building and parking areas will be collected via intakes within the parking area and 
transferred via piping to the detention basin. Stormwater Management Plan has been 
reviewed and approved by the Engineering Division. 

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Water, electric, gas, and communications utility services are available to the site in accordance 
with the service policies of Cedar Falls Utilities. The property owner/contractor is responsible to 
extend all utility services to the building. These utility extensions will be reviewed by CFU 
personnel as part of the building plan review. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department has reviewed the plan and recommends approval, 
subject to the following comments: 
 

1) Any additional comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
7/24/2019 

 

  
 

 

23

Item 3.



S Prairie
Lake

Dry

Run
Cre ek

(S)

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Technology
Park

Industrial
Park

Central
River AEA

Prairie
Lakes
Park

Technology Pkwy

Pr
inc

eto
n A

ve

Richmond St

Montclair St

Scranton St

Columbia St

Concord St

Saratoga St

Camden St

Le
xin

gto
nB

lvd

Ch an cel lorDr

Waterway Ave (Planned)

C yber Ln (Planned)

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

W Ridgeway Ave
R-4

M-1
M-1

PC-2

HWY-1

BR

A-1

A-1

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce d a
rH

eig
hts

Dr

University Ave

Waterloo Rd Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

V ikin

gRd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

Center St

E Dunkerton Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in 
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

NUnion Rd

Lincoln St

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

r se
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

Location
Map

^

DQ Grill & Chill/Convenience 
Store/Auto Service Station
Hwy-1 Site Plan Review

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
July 24, 2019

24

Item 3.



ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL

Ó 

25

Item 3.



CL

ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL

Ó 

26

Item 3.



27

Item 3.



28

Item 3.



29

Item 3.



30

Item 3.



31

Item 3.



32

Item 3.



33

Item 3.



32
7 

E
as

t F
ou

rth
 S

tre
et

S
ui

te
 2

04
W

at
er

lo
o,

 Io
w

a 
50

70
3

D
ra

w
in

gs
 a

nd
 S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

, i
de

as
,

de
si

gn
s,

 a
nd

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 re

pr
es

en
te

d
ar

e 
an

d 
sh

al
l r

em
ai

n 
th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

ar
ch

ite
ct

 a
nd

 n
o 

pa
rt 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
pi

ed
 o

r
di

sc
lo

se
d 

to
 o

th
er

s,
 o

r u
se

d 
in

 c
on

ne
c-

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
ny

 w
or

k 
or

 p
ro

je
ct

 o
th

er
 th

an
th

e 
sp

ec
fie

d 
pr

oj
ec

t f
or

 w
hi

ch
 th

ey
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 w
ith

ou
t t

he
 w

rit
te

n
co

ns
en

t o
f t

he
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

.  
Vi

su
al

 c
on

ta
ct

w
ith

 th
es

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 s
ha

ll
co

ns
tit

ut
e 

co
nc

lu
si

ve
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
se

 re
st

ric
tio

ns
.

C
   

 C
op

yr
ig

ht
 2

01
9

July 17, 2019

P
h.

: 3
19

-2
33

-1
16

3
Fa

x:
 3

19
-2

33
-9

86
3

/V
ol

um
es

/P
ro

je
ct

 D
oc

s/
20

18
-0

05
0 

R
ou

se
 D

ai
ry

 Q
ue

en
 C

on
ve

ni
en

ce
 S

to
re

 - 
P

et
er

s/
3.

 C
on

su
lta

nt
s/

La
nd

sc
ap

e/
04

-1
6-

20
19

 p
la

nt
in

g.
pl

n

R
ou

se
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

C
ed

ar
 F

al
ls

, I
ow

a
R

id
ge

w
ay

 A
ve

nu
e

2,451 sq ft

DUMPSTER

1,212 sq ft

110 sq ft 121 sq ft

1,095 sq ft

2,201 sq ft

226 sq ft

226 sq ft

11,146 sq ft

4,483 sq ft

159 sq ft 200 sq ft 820 sq ft

166 sq ft

1,015 sq ft

21,162 sq ft

770 sq ft

2,129 sq ft
462 sq ft

644 sq ft

4,090 sq ft

2,701 sq ft

936

934

932

926

LAWN

LAWN LAWN

8-K 3-Af

3-Af

3-Lp

3-Af

1-Lp

3-Lp

7-Af

1-Lp

8-K

3-Rb

1-Jc

4-Rb

1-Af

5-Lp
5-Af

2-Rp

3-Mk3-Lp3-Ve6-Ve7-Af7-Ve

3-H

6-Ve

3-H

6-H3-Ve

3-H
3-Rb

3-H
3-Rb

6-H
6-R

5-Jc
5-Rb
5-D

6-Jc
6-Rb

6-Jc
6-Rb

6-D

9-D

6-Jc
6-Rb

9-D
6-Jc
5-Rb

1' - 3'
BERM

1' - 3'
BERM

PLANT LIST

 Overstory Trees
13   - 2" caliper/80 pts = 1,040pts.-  Acer Plat."columnaire" 50x15 wide
2   - 2" caliper/80 pts = 160pts. - Gleditsia T. "Skyline" Honeylocust 40x40 wide
19   - 2" caliper/80 pts = 1,520pts. - Ginko Biloba 5x30 wide
30   - 6' ht. / 80 pts =  2,400pts.  -  Pinus Strobus "White Pine" 60x30 wide

55 - 5 GAL/10 pts = 550 pts.    Hydrangea P. Limelight
16 - 2 GAL/5 pts = 80 pts.    Karl Foerster Grass
29 - 2 GAL/5 pts = 145 pts      Hemerocallis Daylily "Happy Returns"
49 - 2 GAL/5 pts = 245 pts.   Rudbekia G. VAR "Sullivanti"
24 - 5 GAL/10 pts = 240 pts.   Juniperus communis var. depressa
10 - 5 GAL/10 pts = 100 pts.  Wiegela - Red Prince
25 - 5 GAL/10 pts = 250 pts.  Viburnum O. "Campactum European Viburnum"
29 - 5 GAL/10 pts = 290 pts.  Cornus R. "Artic Fire" Dogwood
16 - 5 GAL/10 pts = 160 pts. Syringa V. "Common Purple Lilac"
6 - 5 GAL/10 pts = 60 pts.  Syringa Pubescens "Miss Kim" Lilac
Total points provided = 7,240
Total points required = 5,446
Notes:
Rudbekia and Daylilies to be interplanted at high visibility areas in mulch beds.

Mulch areas to receive weed fabric and 2" depth of River rock mulch.

Lawn areas to receive sod or seed provide alternate bids.

Large stone out crop grouping @ 3 Locations
Berm areas to be 3' Ht.

PROVIDE 20" DEPTH OF APPROVED BLACK DIRT IN ALL PLANTING AREAS.

HL

W

K
H

D

Quantity- Size/Points- Variety

GB

M

HLHL

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W

W
W W

W
W

W

W

W

W

GB GB GBGBGBGB

M M M
M

M

M M

Jc
Rb

M M

GB GB

GBGB

M

M

W

W

W
W

GB GB

M M
W W

GB

M
W

Rp
Ve
Af
Lp
Mk

Sq ft

Sq ft

3,692 sq ft

W

W

W

W

W

W

3-Mk3-Rp7-Rp5-H

4-H

9-H 3-H 3-H 3-H

10-H

North

SCALE: 1"   = 50'
Planting Plan P-1

34

Item 3.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 
  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: July 17, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Park Ridge Estates Final Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: Request to approve the Park Ridge Estates Final Plat (Case #FP19-008) 

 
PETITIONER: BJW Holdings LLC; owner and CGA, Inc., Engineer 

 
LOCATION: 
 

20.8 acre parcel at the north end of Lakeshore Drive 

 

PROPOSAL 
The petitioner is requesting approval of a final plat that would create 6 residential lots on 20.8 
acres of land. This subdivision includes the extension of Lake Shore Drive approximately 500 
feet north of its current terminus. Lake Shore Drive will be dedicated as a public street. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The petitioner has been planning this development for the past year. The Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended approval of the rezoning from A-1 to R-1 at the September 12, 2018 
meeting. The City Council approved the rezoning request in November of 2018. The preliminary 
plat was recommended for approval by the Planning and Zoning Commission on November 14, 
2018 and the City Council approved the preliminary plat on November 19, 2018. 
 
During this time of rezoning and platting, the petitioner’s engineer and city staff worked with the 
adjacent property owners to plan for the improvements of the adjacent dam structure near the 
southeast corner of the plat. This dam has been established for a number of years to facilitate a 
lake for the Lakewood Hills subdivision. The owners of the adjacent Lakewood Hills subdivision 
is in the process of permitting and repairing the dam and outflow structure that empties into the 
ravine along the east side of the proposed plat. The proposed Park Ridge Estates subdivision 
provides access easements for the repair and maintenance of said dam. 
 
ZONING 
As previously mentioned, the property was zoned R-1 in the fall of 2018. The R-1 district 
requires a minimum lot area of 9,000 ft² with a minimum lot width of 75 feet. Minimum required 
building setbacks are 30 feet for front and side yards abutting a street, 30-foot rear yard setback 
and side yard building setbacks of not less than 10% of the lot width. 

35

Item 4.



ANALYSIS 
The proposed plat includes six residential lots and six outlots on the 20.8 acre property. All lot 
areas and lot widths satisfy the R-1 district standards of 9,000 square feet and 75 feet, 
respectively. The following is a summary of the areas and widths for each lot. 
 

Lot # Lot Width (ft.) Lot Area (sq.ft.) 

1 159 32,428 

2 145 31,362 

3 75 95,764 

4 75 79,581 

5 110 62,775 

6 385 90,505 

Outlot A 385 38,535 

Outlot B 180 72,567 

Outlot C 159 17,878 

Outlot D 163 26,369 

Outlot E 401 156,103 

Outlot F 315 120,567 

Outlot G Detention 22,381 

Outlot H Detention 20,852 

 
The plat shows a 30-foot front yard setback. The rear yard setbacks will be 30 feet and the side 
yard setback will equal 10% of the lot width. These building setbacks conform to the R-1, 
residential zoning district standards. The lots are intended to be developed with single unit 
detached dwellings. 
 
The lettered outlots are identified on the plat as follows: 

 Outlot A will be sold to the adjacent property owner to the west of this subdivision. 

 Outlot B is located in the 100-year floodplain. The preliminary floodplain maps 
(tentative date for approval in the fall/winter of 2020) show that the majority of this 
outlot will be removed from the floodplain. At that time, the property owner would be 
able to submit a preliminary and final plat this outlot for future development of another 
single family dwelling. 

 Outlots C – F encompass the sensitive land features including the floodplain district, 
wetlands, steep slopes and tree stands. These outlots are identified as a conservation 
easement and will be conveyed to the owners of the abutting lots in the subdivision. 
This is a perpetual easement for preservation purposes. The conservation easement 
will clearly define this area as a no disturbance buffer, the owners of these lots will not 
be permitted to make any temporary or permanent change in the character of the 
aforementioned sensitive features, no grading/fill, no structures or any other 
encroachment will not be permitted. This easement is identified on the plat and deed of 
dedication. A separate conservation easement must be filed with the Black Hawk 
Recorder’s office and attached to the plat and deed of dedication. 

 Outlots G – H are set aside for storm water management purposes. These will be the 
detention basins to collect the storm water from the subdivision. Access must be 
identified on the plat through Outlot H from Lot 1 to Outlot C.  

 
The Park Ridge Estates plat includes a cul-de-sac extension of Lakeshore Drive. The middle of 
the cul-de-sac is approximately 600 feet from the north curb line of Lilliput Lane. This will be a 

36

Item 4.



31-foot wide street in a 60-foot public right of way. The cul-de-sac will have a 45-foot radius for 
90 feet of pavement which is large enough for city vehicles and fire trucks to make the 
turnaround. All lots will have access onto Lakeshore Drive. 
 
The International Fire Code allows up to 30 dwelling units in a residential development on a 
single access road or public street. Since the west half of Lakewood Hills and the Lakewood 
Estates subdivision already include 30 residential dwellings, a secondary access to this site is 
needed. Due to the rugged topography of the site providing a second means of access would be 
difficult and costly and would involve disturbance of sensitive environmental areas. However, 
there is an exception to this rule. More than 30 residential dwellings may be approved with only 
a single means of access, if these dwellings are equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler 
system in accordance with the International Fire Code. The proposed homes in this subdivision 
will be constructed with a residential sprinkler system approved by the City of Cedar Falls 
Building Department and Cedar Falls Fire Operations Department. Given the limited number of 
dwellings proposed, the difficulty of providing a second means of access and the addition of 
sprinkler systems, staff finds that making an exception to the secondary access rule is 
reasonable. 
 
The Deed of Dedication in association with the plat submittal is straightforward. The Deed 
language outlines the requirements for the developer and restricts the development of each lot 
in accordance with the R-1 residential standards found in the Zoning Ordinance. The 
development of this subdivision is limited to single unit dwellings. There is a provision in the 
Deed of Dedication for residential sprinkler systems to be installed in each dwelling and the 
installation of a 4-foot wide public sidewalk across the entire frontage of any lot at the time when 
a new house is under construction. Finally, all mailboxes will be grouped or clustered for the 
dwellings according to the USPS requirements and location reviewed by the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Utilities - City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, 
electric, gas and communication services are available to the site at the north end of Lakeshore 
Drive. An adequate sized water main has been extended to serve this subdivision. The other 
utilities are installed as part of the public improvements. The easements identified on the plat 
satisfy CFU requirements. 
 
Stormwater Management – The petitioner’s engineer has submitted a storm water management 
plan to the City and it has been reviewed by the City Engineer. The City Engineer has 
determined that the plan meets the City’s subdivision requirements and also finds that the 
design will improve the drainage pattern that has developed over the years on this undeveloped 
parcel of land. Following is a summary of the proposed stormwater management system for the 
new subdivision. 
 
The stormwater from the north end of the existing Lakeshore Drive and on the west side of the 
plat on Lot 6 will flow to an inlet located between Outlot B and Lot 1. A cut off ditch along the 
south border of the plat (west of Lakeshore Drive) will collect and divert any on-site runoff from 
Lot 6 to the street and will flow to the new intakes. The street and stormwater management 
system will be designed to direct a very large storm event into the stormwater basins on Outlot 
G and H. In such an event, approximately 1/3 of the water will be carried through an 18” storm 
sewer along the south side of Lot 1 to the detention basin in Outlot H; 1/3 of the water that is in 
the sump location in the street will be conveyed via an overflow channel located over the storm 
sewer to the basin in Outlot H. This basin is designed to collect the storm water from the street 

37

Item 4.



and from Lots 1-3. The remaining 1/3 of the water in a 100-year event will overtop the sump 
location in the street and travel to the north into another detention basin in Outlot G located at 
the end of the cul-de-sac. The detention basins in Outlot G and H are designed to detain up to a 
100-year rain event and release the water at a slower rate (the pre-development 2-year rate) 
into the stream at the bottom of the ravine along the north and east side of the subdivision. 
 
Sanitary Sewer - The sanitary sewer will be extended to the north end of Lakeshore Drive to 
service each lot. Typically, the sanitary sewer must be extended to the limits of the plat, per the 
City’s subdivision ordinance in order to accommodate the future growth in the northwest portion 
of Cedar Falls. The developer’s engineer provided a preliminary sanitary sewer study to identify 
a future location of the sewer extension to the limits of the plat. It was determined that due to the 
steep slopes, floodplain and soil conditions, a sanitary sewer is not feasible through the north 
end of the Lakeshore Drive extension or along the easterly property line. Therefore, the 
proposed development of this property will utilize the existing lift station at the southeast corner 
of the property. The plan is to extend a future sanitary sewer through the north edge of this plat 
to service future growth in western Cedar Falls at some point in the future. A sanitary sewer 
easement is identified along the north side of the plat to allow for the future sanitary sewer. 
 

SUMMARY 
The City’s Subdivision Ordinance outlines the requirements pertaining to Subdivision Plats. A 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat represents a “conceptual development plan” which the City must 
review and evaluate to insure compliance with all City regulations. Issues related to zoning 
regulations, utility easement provision, street locations and alignments and other factors are all 
subject to review and approval by City staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission and the 
City Council. Following Preliminary Plat approval by the City Council, the developer is free to 
begin installing the necessary public improvements (i.e. streets, sewers, waterlines, etc.) as 
indicated on the plat. 
 
A Final Subdivision Plat formalizes the Preliminary Plat and authorizes the developer to begin 
selling lots and to begin building on the newly created lots. Normally a Final Subdivision Plat 
cannot be approved until all of the required public improvements have been installed and 
completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. A Final Plat can be “expedited” prior to full 
completion and acceptance of public improvements provided that the developer posts a cash 
bond with the City Engineering Division which serves as a financial guarantee that all the 
improvements will be installed in a timely fashion. 
 
Currently, the underground work, sewers, utilities, etc. are substantially completed. The 
subgrade, subbase and paving for the street extension will follow in late July. The remaining 
detailed grading, backfill and seeding will complete the improvements in August. The developer 
is in a position to submit the final plat for review by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
This Park Ridge Estates Final Plat conforms to the approved preliminary plat. Before this plat 
proceeds to the City Council, final contract documents, estimates and bonds must be reviewed 
and approved by city staff in order to complete the improvements. 
 
The lots are located outside of the designated 100-year floodplain. Outlots B - H encompass the 
100-year floodplain. A notice to the adjoining property owners informing them that this final plat 
will be presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission was mailed on July 18, 2019. 
 
 

38

Item 4.



STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed final plat meets the standards of the City’s subdivision code and is consistent with 
its corresponding and approved preliminary plat. The Community Development Department 
recommends approval of the Park Ridge Estates Final Plat, subject to the following comments: 
 

1. Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
2. Submit a separate Conservation Easement document to be recorded with the plat and 

deed of dedication. 
3. All new homes will be constructed with a residential sprinkler system approved by the 

City of Cedar Falls Building Department and or Cedar Falls Fire Department according to 
IFC 2015 and NFPA 13D. 

4. Identify an access easement on the plat through Outlot H from Lot 1 to Outlot C. 
5. The necessary construction documents, contracts, estimates and bonds for the public 

improvements must be submitted, reviewed and approved by city staff before the final 
plat is presented to the City Council. 

6. The petitioner’s engineer shall verify that all access easements shown on the plat shall 
be accessible and traversable for city vehicles. 

7. Conform to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
7/24/2019 

 

 

39

Item 4.



C
e
d
a
r

River

Cedar

River

Pheasant
Ridge Golf

Course

Ulrich Park

Wynnewood Dr

Pheasant Dr

F
ir

e
s
ide Dr

Crescent Dr

Lakesho re
D

r

J
e
s
s
ic

a
L

n

A
lic

e Ave

O
a
k

P
ar

k
B

lvd

D
a

m
a

s
c
u

s
 D

r

Falcon Ln

W 3rd St

S
 R

id
g

e
 D

r

Northview Ln E
a
g

le
 R

id
g

e
 R

d

C
e

d
a

r 
C

re
s
t 
D

r

P
a
rk

g
a

te
 R

d

B
a
rn

e
tt

 D
r

Horizon Dr

Lake
R

id
g
e

D
r

S
ta

n
le

y
 S

t

L
a

k
e
v
ie

w Dr

B
re

n
tw

o
o

d
 D

r

S
h

e
l le

y
L
n

Li
llip

ut Ln

M
a
g
no

lia
D

r

K
a

sp
e
n
d

P
l

L
e

C
la

ir
 S

t

H
o

lm
e

s
D

r

Glen Oaks Dr

W 4th St

W
i n

d
in

g
R

idge
R

d

Whitetail D r

Fandre Dr

Ryan Dr

Ju
a
n
ita

Ave

S
a
nd

ah
lwoo

d
C

ir

Minnetonka Dr

Country
M

e

adow
L

n

Cottage Row
R
d

T
hu

nde r
R

idge Blvd

Apollo St

Skyview Dr

A
p

o
l lo

S

t (Planned)

N
 U

n
io

n
 R

d
U

n
io

n
 R

d

W 1st St

R-1

R-2

C-1 R-1

R-1

C-1

R-1

R-5

R-1SU

R-2

C-1C-2
C-2

R-3

S-1

C-2

RP

R-1 A-1

R-4

RP

R-3

A-1

A-1

A-1

®¬57

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
July 24, 2019

Park Ridge Estates Final Plat
W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

H
u

d
s
o

n
R

d

WRidg

eway Ave

University Ave

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

C

ente
r

S
t

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

M
a

in
 S

t

W 1st St

W 12th St

E Viking R
d

W Viking Rd

W
aterloo

R
d

U
n

io
n
 R

d

E 1st St

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

N

U
nion

R
d

E Lone Tree Rd

L
e

v
e

rs
e

e
R

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

40

Item 4.



LINE DATA
LINE NUMBER

L1

L2

L3

BEARING

N66°55'24"W

N21°27'19"W

N24°58'12"E

DISTANCE

37.54'

41.96'

42.01'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE DATA

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

ARC LENGTH

21.55'

77.25'

47.22'

48.21'

47.22'

69.61'

21.55'

289.51'

RADIUS

25.00'

59.50'

59.50'

59.50'

59.50'

59.50'

25.00'

59.50'

DELTA ANGLE

49°23'29"

74°23'29"

45°27'58"

46°25'32"

45°27'58"

67°02'03"

49°23'29"

278°46'58"

CHORD BEARING

N26°37'02"W

N14°07'02"W

N45°48'42"E

S88°14'34"E

S42°17'49"E

S13°57'11"W

S22°46'28"W

N88°04'43"E

CHORD

20.89'

71.94'

45.99'

46.90'

45.99'

65.71'

20.89'

77.46'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

www.cgaconsultants.com
Toll Free (800) 542-7981

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

69
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\F

in
al

 P
la

t\5
69

4-
Fi

na
l P

la
t.d

wg
 - 

FP
-1

 - 
 0

7-
17

-1
9 

- 4
:0

4p
m

 - 
LC

B3
55

CGA PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
1 OF 5

5694.05

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FINAL PLATSJC

JAH

PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION FINAL PLAT
BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

(  )    RECORDED AS

PARCEL OR LOT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

LEGEND:

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

Professional Land Surveyor under the laws of the State of Iowa.
my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
and the related survey work was performed by me or under
I hereby certify that this land surveying document was prepared

date

WI O A

EDL
EIC NS

P
R

O
F

E
SS IONAL L AND SUR

V
E

Y
O

RSET 1/2" x 30" REBAR w/BLUE PLASTIC
ID CAP #22259

GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT SET 1/2" x 30"
REBAR w/BLUE PLASTIC ID CAP #22259

Iowa License Number 22259
My License Renewal Date is December 31, 2019

JEREMY A. HARRIS, PLS22259

JE

REMY  A .  HARRIS

SHEETS 1 OF 5, 2 OF 5, 3 OF 5, 4 OF 5, AND 5 OF 5.

FINAL PLAT
PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

PROPRIETOR
BJW HOLDINGS LLC
2110 FLYNN DRIVE
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

DEVELOPER

ZONING INFORMATION:
CURRENT: R1 (RESIDENTIAL)

BRIAN WINGERT
2021 MAIN ST., SUITE A
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  50613

SURVEYOR AND ENGINEER
JEREMY A. HARRIS, P.L.S.
ADAM DATERS, P.E.
CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES
P.O. BOX 754 - 16 E. MAIN STREET
MARSHALLTOWN, IOWA 50158
(641)752-6701

NOTE:
ALL BEARINGS ARE THE RESULT OF G.P.S. OBSERVATIONS
USING NAD83 IOWA STATE PLAN NORTH ZONE

CLOSURE:
- ALL SUBDIVISION BOUNDARIES ARE WITHIN THE 1:10,000 ERROR OF

CLOSURE REQUIREMENT
- ALL LOTS ARE WITHIN THE 1:5000 ERROR OF CLOSURE REQUIREMENT.

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

DATE PREPARED:6/24/2019

THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW 1/4), OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP
EIGHTY-NINE NORTH (T89N), RANGE FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,
BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF LAKEWOOD HILLS, EXCEPT THE EAST SIX HUNDRED FIVE (605) FEET THEREOF.

ALSO

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 1/4), OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP
EIGHTY-NINE NORTH (T89N), RANGE FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,
BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF LAKEWOOD HILLS, EXCEPT THE WEST ONE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED
FORTY-EIGHT (1,248) FEET THEREOF

PROJECT
LOCATION

N

SETBACK DATA

LOT 1            15.9'              30'

LOT 2            14.8               30'

LOT 3             7.5                30'

LOT 4             7.5                30'

LOT 5            11.0               30'

LOT 6            20.0               30'

LOT NO         SIDE          REAR
(GROSS-ACRES) (EASE-ACRES) (NET-ACRES)

NE 1/4 SW 1/4
SEC 3-89-14

18.49 AC 18.49 AC0.00 AC

2.22 AC 2.22 AC0.00 AC

NW 1/4 SE 1/4
SEC 3-89-14

TOTAL 20.71 AC 20.71 AC0.00 AC

SHEET INDEX
SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION
   1 OF 5 TITLE SHEET
   2 OF 5  FINAL PLAT
   3 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   4 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   5 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS

TRACT USE TABLE

TRACT "A" STREET R.O.W.

OUTLOT "A" TO BE USED FOR EXPANSION OF A YARD FOR DEAN AND
ROBYN ANDERSON AND SUBSEQUENT OWNERS. OUTLOT
"A" WILL BE A PART OF AN UNPLATTED CEDAR FALLS NE SW
LOT WITH THE ADDRESS BEING 3316 SKYVIEW DR, CEDAR
FALLS, IA 50613.

OUTLOT "B" RESERVED FOR FURTHER DEVELOPMENT PENDING
FLOOD MAP REVISIONS.

OUTLOT "C" TO BE CONVEYED TO THE OWNER OF LOT 1.

OUTLOT "D" TO BE CONVEYED TO THE OWNER OF LOT 2.

OUTLOT "E" TO BE CONVEYED TO THE OWNER OF LOT 3.

OUTLOT "F" TO BE CONVEYED TO THE OWNER OF LOT 4.

OUTLOT "G" STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

OUTLOT "H" STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

41

Item 4.



SEWER EASEMENT

ACCESS
EASEMENT

CONSERVATION
EASEMENT FOR

OUTLOT B

R59.50'
158.72'

CENTER
SECTION 3-89-14
FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR
FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND 5/8" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

LOT 1
32,428 SF
0.75 AC LOT 2

31,362 SF
0.72 AC

LOT 3
95,764 SF
2.20 AC

LOT 4
79,581 SF
1.83 AC

LOT 5
62,775 SF
1.44 AC

LOT 6
90,505 SF
2.08 AC

OUTLOT "C"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

17,878 SF
0.41 AC

OUTLOT "D"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

26,369 SF
0.61 AC

OUTLOT "E"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

156,103 SF
3.58 AC

TRACT  "A"
34,757 SF
0.80 AC

100' SEWER
EASEMENT

10'

OUTLOT "A"
38,535 SF
0.88 AC

RESERVED FOR FURTHER
DEVELOPMENT PENDING
FLOOD MAP REVISIONS.

TO BE CONVEYED TO THE
OWNER OF LOT 1.

TO BE CONVEYED TO THE
OWNER OF LOT 3.

TO BE CONVEYED TO THE
OWNER OF LOT 4.

TO BE CONVEYED TO THE
OWNER OF LOT 2.

OUTLOT "F"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

120,567 SF
2.77 AC

OUTLOT "B"
72,567 SF
1.67 AC

OUTLOT G
22,381 SF
0.51 AC

OUTLOT H
20,852 SF
0.48 AC

15' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

25
' D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

20
' S

A
N

 S
E

W
E

R
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

164.81'

30'
INGRESS/EGRESS

EASEMENT

80
7.

40
'

S
89

°0
4'

58
"W

1121.06'
S1°44'27"E

1120.89'
N1°31'03"W

71
6.

75
' (

71
7.

10
')

N
89

°0
1'

37
"E

 (
N

89
°0

5'
21

"E
)

86
.2

8'
N

89
°2

7'
58

"E

385.39'
N1°55'17"W

C1

C2

C3

C
4

C5

C6

C7
386.44'

S1°55'17"E60
.0

1'

33
3.

52
'

N
89

°0
4'

58
"E 35

5.
06

'

N52
°1

3'5
4"

W

L1

L2

L3

L4

249.10'
N1°45'50"E

263.67'
N1°45'50"E

289.63'
S67°33'15"W

332.30'
N1°45'50"E

99
.60

'

N45
°2

8'3
0"

W

334.25'

N14°33'40"E

17
5.

87
'

N
89

°0
4'

58
"E

175.09'
N

82°17'06"E

385.35'
N1°31'03"W

174.33'N3°56'45"E
164.42'

N6°36'27"E

81
.6

3'
S

89
°0

4'
58

"W

223.66'
N0°55'02"W

11
1.

51
'

S
89

°0
4'

58
"W

11
3.

80
'

N
89

°0
4'

58
"E

38
6.

28
'

N
83

°2
6'

52
"W

21
2.

48
'

N
89

°0
4'

58
"E

619.21'
163.02'

180.12'

15.00'
158.70' 49.96'

41
1.

16
'

23
6.

23
'

10
0.

01
'

385.35'
326.07' 127.45' 282.01'

34
6.

14
'

40
.1

4'

43.86'

245.78'

40
1.

53
'

31
5.

22
'

50.40' 114.02'

159.27'

180.13' 158.72' 47.59'

10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

57
1.

24
'

S
70

°3
1'

06
"W

26
0.

00
'

S
89

°0
1'

37
"W

159.77'

100.01'

C
8

2632.46'
N1°31'03"WTO BE USED FOR EXPANSION OF A YARD FOR DEAN AND ROBYN

ANDERSON AND SUBSEQUENT OWNERS. OUTLOT "A" WILL BE A

PART OF AN UNPLATTED CEDAR FALLS NE SW LOT WITH THE

ADDRESS BEING 3316 SKYVIEW DR, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613.

30' FRONT SETBACK (TYP.)

30' REAR SETBACK (TYP.)

971.50' (971.44')

60
.0

0'

20' SAN SEWER

EASEMENT

WEST LINE OF THE SE 1/4
SECTION 3-89-14

3.78'
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

20
' A

C
C

E
S

S
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

19
6.

20
'

N
89

°0
4'

58
"E

30' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

10
3.

01
'

N
89

°0
4'

58
"E

15.06'

40' SEWER
EASEMENT

S 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 3-89-14

FND CUT "X"

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

100'50' 150'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

www.cgaconsultants.com
Toll Free (800) 542-7981

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

69
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\F

in
al

 P
la

t\5
69

4-
Fi

na
l P

la
t.d

wg
 - 

FP
-2

 - 
 0

7-
17

-1
9 

- 4
:0

4p
m

 - 
LC

B3
55

CGA PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
2 OF 5

5694.05

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FINAL PLATSJC

JAH

FINAL PLAT
PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

SHEET INDEX
SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION
   1 OF 5 TITLE SHEET
   2 OF 5  FINAL PLAT
   3 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   4 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   5 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS

SCALE: 1" = 50' (22x34 SHEET)
1" = 100' (11x17 SHEET)

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD HILLS

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD ESTATES

FOUND 1"
PINCHED PIPE

ACCESS EASEMENT

SEWER EASEMENT

LEGEND

SAN SEWER EASEMENT

42

Item 4.



LOT 1
LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4LOT 5LOT 6

OUTLOT "C"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

OUTLOT "D"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

OUTLOT "E"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

TRACT  "A"

100' SEWER
EASEMENT

10'

20
' A

C
C

E
S

S
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

SEWER EASEMENTOUTLOT "A"

OUTLOT "F"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

OUTLOT "B"

30' DRAINAGE
EASEMENTACCESS

EASEMENT

OUTLOT G

OUTLOT H

15' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

25
' D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

20
' S

A
N

 S
E

W
E

R
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

164.81'

CONSERVATION
EASEMENT FOR

OUTLOT B

30'
INGRESS/EGRESS

EASEMENT

10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

R59.50'

CENTER
SECTION 3-89-14
FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR
FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND 5/8" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

282.01'

CENTERLINE 40'
SEWER EASEMENT

131.66'

16.45'

20'
20'

10
'

10
'

80
7.

40
'

S
89

°0
4'

58
"W

1121.06'
S1°44'27"E

1120.89'
N1°31'03"W

71
6.

75
' (

71
7.

10
')

N
89

°0
1'

37
"E

 (
N

89
°0

5'
21

"E
)

86
.2

8'
N

89
°2

7'
58

"E

60
.0

1'

57
1.

24
'

S
70

°3
1'

06
"W

26
0.

00
'

S
89

°0
1'

37
"W

159.77'

100.01'

2632.46'
N1°31'03"W

18
5.

46
'

N
89

°1
1'

16
"W

23
4.

94
'

N
76

°1
7'

44
"W

213.02'
N

81°17'29"E

336.39'
S6°36'27"W

20' SAN SEWER

EASEMENT

WEST LINE OF THE SE 1/4
SECTION 3-89-14

3.78'

S 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 3-89-14

FND CUT "X"

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

100'50' 150'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

www.cgaconsultants.com
Toll Free (800) 542-7981

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

69
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\F

in
al

 P
la

t\5
69

4-
Fi

na
l P

la
t S

he
et

 3
 o

f 4
.d

wg
 - 

FP
-3

 - 
 0

7-
17

-1
9 

- 4
:0

5p
m

 - 
LC

B3
55

CGA PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
3 OF 5

5694.05

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FINAL PLATSJC

JAH

FINAL PLAT
PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

LOT 1

OUTLOT 2

7.
46

'

11.89'

CENTERLINE 20'
SANITARY SEWER

EASEMENT

O
U

TL
O

T 
"B

"
C

E
N

TE
R

LI
N

E
 4

0'
S

E
W

E
R

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

SEE DETAIL "A"

DETAIL "A"
SCALE 1" = 20' (22x34 SHEET)

1" = 40' (11x17 SHEET)

LOT 2

LOT 3

CL 20' S
ANITARY

SEWER EASEMENT

SEE DETAIL "B"

LOT LINE

D=4°00'55"
L=4.17'

CH=4.17'
CH=N21°34'18"W

R=59.50'

10
'

10
'

10' 10'

DETAIL "B"
SCALE 1" = 20' (22x34 SHEET)

1" = 40' (11x17 SHEET)

SHEET INDEX
SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION
   1 OF 5 TITLE SHEET
   2 OF 5  FINAL PLAT
   3 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   4 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   5 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS

SCALE: 1" = 50' (22x34 SHEET)
1" = 100' (11x17 SHEET)

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD HILLS

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD ESTATES

FOUND 1"
PINCHED PIPE

LEGEND

SEWER EASEMENT

SAN SEWER EASEMENT

43

Item 4.



100' SEWER
EASEMENT

10'

30' DRAINAGE
EASEMENTACCESS

EASEMENT

15' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

25
' D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

20
' S

A
N

 S
E

W
E

R
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

CONSERVATION
EASEMENT FOR

OUTLOT B

30'
INGRESS/EGRESS

EASEMENT

10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

R59.50'

CENTER
SECTION 3-89-14
FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR
FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND 5/8" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

282.01'

80
7.

40
'

S
89

°0
4'

58
"W

1121.06'
S1°44'27"E

1120.89'
N1°31'03"W

71
6.

75
' (

71
7.

10
')

N
89

°0
1'

37
"E

 (
N

89
°0

5'
21

"E
)

86
.2

8'
N

89
°2

7'
58

"E

60
.0

1'

57
1.

24
'

S
70

°3
1'

06
"W

26
0.

00
'

S
89

°0
1'

37
"W

159.77'

100.01'

2632.46'
N1°31'03"W

40' SEWER
EASEMENT

15'
15'

134.98'
N

89°04'58"E

144.80'
S

88°15'33"W
58.71'

S
68°20'28"W

27.79'
N0°55'02"W

59.08'
N

68°20'19"E 106.40'
S0°00'00"E

98.46'
S0°00'00"E

89.22'

83.01'

20' SAN SEWER

EASEMENT

WEST LINE OF THE SE 1/4
SECTION 3-89-14

LOT 1
LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4LOT 5LOT 6

OUTLOT "C"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

OUTLOT "D"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

OUTLOT "E"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

TRACT  "A"

OUTLOT "A"

OUTLOT "F"
CONSERVATION

EASEMENT

OUTLOT "B"

OUTLOT G

OUTLOT H

SEWER EASEMENT

3.78'

S 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 3-89-14

FND CUT "X"

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

100'50' 150'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

www.cgaconsultants.com
Toll Free (800) 542-7981

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

69
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\F

in
al

 P
la

t\5
69

4-
Fi

na
l P

la
t S

he
et

 4
 o

f 4
.d

wg
 - 

FP
-4

 - 
 0

7-
17

-1
9 

- 4
:0

6p
m

 - 
LC

B3
55

CGA PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
4 OF 5

5694.05

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FINAL PLATSJC

JAH

FINAL PLAT
PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

SHEET INDEX
SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION
   1 OF 5 TITLE SHEET
   2 OF 5  FINAL PLAT
   3 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   4 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   5 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS

SCALE: 1" = 50' (22x34 SHEET)
1" = 100' (11x17 SHEET)

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD HILLS

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD ESTATES

FOUND 1"
PINCHED PIPE

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

ACCESS EASEMENT

LEGEND

44

Item 4.



R59.50'

CENTER
SECTION 3-89-14
FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE

FND 1/2" REBAR
w/ YPC #8033

FND 1" PINCHED PIPE FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR FND 5/8" REBAR
FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND REBAR
w/ OPC #12088

FND 5/8" REBAR

FND 1/2" REBAR

80
7.

40
'

S
89

°0
4'

58
"W

1121.06'
S1°44'27"E

1120.89'
N1°31'03"W

71
6.

75
' (

71
7.

10
')

N
89

°0
1'

37
"E

 (
N

89
°0

5'
21

"E
)

86
.2

8'
N

89
°2

7'
58

"E

2632.46'
N1°31'03"W

83.01'

WEST LINE OF THE SE 1/4
SECTION 3-89-14

LOT 1
LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4LOT 5LOT 6

OUTLOT "C"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

OUTLOT "D"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

OUTLOT "E"
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

TRACT  "A"

OUTLOT "A"

OUTLOT "F"
CONSERVATION

EASEMENT

OUTLOT "B"

OUTLOT G

OUTLOT H

3.78'

164.81'
N0°00'00"E

20
2.

03
'

S
89

°0
4'

58
"W 158.70'

N0°55'02"W

81
.6

3'
S

89
°0

4'
58

"W

114.02'
N6°36'27"E

334.25'

N14°33'40"E

99
.60

'

N45
°2

8'3
0"

W

24
5.

78
'

S6
7°

33
'1

5"
W

34
6.

14
'

N
83

°2
6'

52
"W

15.00'
N0°55'02"W

49.96'
N0°55'02"W

43
.8

6'
S6

7°
33

'1
5"

W
40

.1
4'

N
83

°2
6'

52
"W

S 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 3-89-14

FND CUT "X"

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

100'50' 150'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

www.cgaconsultants.com
Toll Free (800) 542-7981

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

69
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\F

in
al

 P
la

t\5
69

4-
Fi

na
l P

la
t S

he
et

 4
 o

f 4
.d

wg
 - 

FP
-5

 - 
 0

7-
17

-1
9 

- 4
:0

6p
m

 - 
LC

B3
55

CGA PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
5 OF 5

5694.05

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FINAL PLATSJC

JAH

FINAL PLAT
PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

SHEET INDEX
SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION
   1 OF 5 TITLE SHEET
   2 OF 5  FINAL PLAT
   3 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   4 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS
   5 OF 5  FINAL PLAT EASEMENTS

SCALE: 1" = 50' (22x34 SHEET)
1" = 100' (11x17 SHEET)

CONSERVATION EASEMENT FOR

OUTLOT "B"

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD HILLS

NORTH LINE
LAKEWOOD ESTATES

FOUND 1"
PINCHED PIPE

LEGEND

CONSERVATION
EASEMENTS

45

Item 4.



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 1

DEED OF DEDICATION
OF

PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
CEDAR FALLS,

IOWA

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That BJW Holdings, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company, with its principal
office in Cedar Falls, Iowa; being desirous of setting out and platting into lots and streets the land
described in the attached Certificate of Survey by ______________, a Professional Engineer and
Licensed Land Surveyor, dated _____ day of ________________, 2019, does by these presents
designate and set apart the aforesaid premises as a subdivision of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
the same to be known as:

PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

all of which is with the free consent and the desire of the undersigned and the undersigned do
hereby designate and set apart for public use the street(s) as shown upon the attached plat.

EASEMENTS

The undersigned do hereby grant and convey to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its
successors and assigns, and to any private corporation, firm or person furnishing utilities for the
transmission and/or distribution of water, sanitary sewer, gas, electricity, communication service
or cable television, perpetual easements for the erection, laying building and maintenance of said
services over, across, on and/or under the property as shown on the attached plat. No structures
of any kind shall be built or placed within any easements as shown on the attached plat.

RESTRICTIONS

Be it also known that the undersigned do hereby covenant and agree for themselves and
their successors and assigns that each and all of the residential lots in said subdivision be and the
same are hereby made subject to the following restrictions upon their use and occupancy as fully
and effectively to all intents and purposes as if the same were contained and set forth in each
deed of conveyance or mortgage that the undersigned or their successors in interest may
hereinafter make for any of said lots and that such restrictions shall run with the land and with
each individual lot thereof for the length of time and in all particulars hereinafter stated, to-wit:

1. Any dwelling that shall be erected on any lot shall have a minimum setback from the

46

Item 4.



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 2

front of the lot line as indicated on attached Final Plat. The minimum set back from each side lot
line is 10% of the lot width measured along the front of the lot or seven and one-half (7.5) feet
whichever is greater. All minimum setbacks will be required to meet or exceed R-1 Zoning.

2. No single family dwelling shall be constructed, permitted or occupied on any lot
herein having a square footage floor space, designed, intended, and constructed for living
quarters, which space shall not include cellars, attics, garages, breezeways, porches, stoops, and
other such non-living areas, of less than the following requirements:

A. 2,000 square feet for the main base of a single story, split-level or split-foyer houses.

B. 1,300 square feet on the first floor for story and one-half houses, or two story houses.
With a total for all floors not less than 2,600 square feet excluding the basement level.

3. Each single family residence shall have a minimum of a garage with a minimum of
850 square feet.

4. The owner(s) of each lot, vacant or improved, shall keep his/hers lot or lots free of
weeds and debris.

5. No obnoxious or offensive trade or activity shall be carried on upon any lot nor shall
anything be done thereon which may be or become an annoyance or nuisance to the
neighborhood.

6. All approaches and driveways in said subdivision shall be paved with concrete.

7. No old or used buildings shall be moved upon any of the lots in said subdivision for
any purpose. Any auxiliary buildings or sheds must be built of the same or similar materials of
the residential structure on the lot and have the same roof pitch and design as said residential
structure.

8. No radio station or short-wave operators of any kind shall operate from any lot which
shall cause interference with audio or visual reception upon any other lot. No exterior radio
antenna shall be erected or maintained in or on the property. No satellite TV antenna or “Dish”
may be maintained, constructed or erected on any lot unless it is constructed in the rear yard and
at least twenty feet from any property line and is shielded from the public view by shrubbery and
landscaping. No dish larger than 24” will be allowed.

9. No dwelling on any lot of said subdivision shall be occupied until the exterior is
completed and finished and the interior substantially completed and finished.

10. No bus, semi-tractor, RV, fifth-wheel camper, trailer or truck of any kind except what
is commonly described as a “pick-up truck” shall be kept or parked on any lot or street in said

47

Item 4.



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 3

subdivision for a period not to exceed twenty-four hours, after which said vehicle can not return
to said subdivision for a period of five days, provided, however, that this prohibition shall not
apply to such vehicles driven in said subdivision in pursuit of and in conducting their usual
business.

11. All buildings erected on any lot in said subdivision shall be constructed in accordance
with the Building, Plumbing, and Electrical Codes of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

12. No animals, livestock, or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept on any lot,
except that two dogs or cats maximum, or other household pets are allowed and then only if they
are not kept, bred or maintained for any commercial purposes, such animals shall be kept under
control so as not to constitute a public nuisance and must be kept in compliance with applicable
zoning laws and regulations of the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Dog runs or
dog kennels of any kind are prohibited.

13. No fencing shall be allowed on any Lot.

14. Each house must be constructed with a fire suppression system approved by the City
of Cedar Falls Building Department.

15. Tract A to be deeded to the City of Cedar Falls, for street purposes.

16. Outlot A must be conveyed to the owner of adjoining 3316 Skyview Rd., Cedar
Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa for expansion of a yard.

17. Outlots B, C, D, E and F are located in a flood plain and shall follow all federal,
state, and local ordinances regarding the same. Outlot B is reserved for further development
pending flood map revisions. Outlot C must be conveyed to the owner of Lot 1. Outlot D must
be conveyed to the owner of Lot 2. Outlot E must be conveyed to the owner of Lot 3. Outlot F
must be conveyed to the owner of Lot 4

18. Outlots G and H shall be used for stormwater detention.

19. An access easement through Outlot B is shown on the plat. Said easement shall be
for access to the detention pond located on Outlot H, and is granted to any party having a legal
right to inspect, maintain, or repair said detention pond. Said easement is not a public easement.

20. The Conservation Easements shown on the Plat shall be to prohibit development in
this area, maintain the natural features within this area, and for ingress and egress and for
maintenance and repair of the dam.

21. Lot 1 shall access Outlot C through Outlot H.

48

Item 4.



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 4

22. A four foot wide P.C.C. sidewalk four inches thick will be installed by the owner of
said lot during or immediately after the construction of the residence on any particular lot, or
within five years after the date the plat is filed in the office of the recorder of Black Hawk
County, whichever is sooner and that the sidewalk be across the full width of the lot and on
corner lots also. In the event that the City is required to construct the sidewalk, a lien or liens
may only be imposed against the lot or lots which require city construction and no others in the
subdivision.

23. No building or structure shall be erected, placed or altered on any lot in this
subdivision until the building plans, and plot plan, showing all buildings, patios, and pools, and
showing the location thereof, and side yard distances, rear yard distances, front yard distances,
driveways, and walkways, and type of construction have been approved in writing as to
conformity and harmony of the external design and quality workmanship and materials with
existing structures in the subdivision by a representative of BJW Holdings, LLC.

24. Factory-built housing or modular homes will not be allowed. Panelized homes may
be allowed, but must meet the requirements of BJW Holdings, LLC, as stated in the previous
restriction.

25. The Owner and/or occupant of each Lot shall jointly and severally be responsible to
keep in good order or to maintain the area between the curbline and the property line abutting
their property including keeping said area free of holes, pitfalls, stumps of trees, fences, brick,
stone, cement, stakes, posts or rods to which a metal, plastic or similar receptacle designed to
hold newspapers are affixed, private irrigation or sprinkler systems, retaining walls, landscaping
brick, block, stone, timber or other similar material, or any other similar obstructions. All
mailboxes shall be clustered or grouped for the units, and shall be placed between the curb line
and the property line abutting the lots.

26. The contractor or owner of any lot shall verify the depth of the sanitary sewer service
line serving said lot to ensure minimum drainage will be met prior to any footing or foundation
work being completed. All sump pump lines must be buried and attached to the subdrain along
the back of the P.C.C. curbed street. No sump lines will be allowed to dump directly onto the
ground surface.

27. Any and all drainage easements will be required to follow the “Stormwater
Management Plan” and no building structures, fence structures, landscaping structures, private
gardens, fill material, or any other possible obstruction can be built in and over said drainage
easements. All lot owners and/or contractors working on said lots will be responsible to
maintain said easements to be free and clear of any physical obstruction(s) thus allowing the
conveyance of overland storm water runoff as intended per “Stormwater Management Plan” on
record with the City of Cedar Falls Engineer’s Office.

49

Item 4.



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 5

28. Each person or entity who is record owner of a fee or undivided fee interest in any
lot shall be a member of the Homeowners Association to be known as Park Ridge Homeowners
Association. This shall not be construed to include persons or entities whom hold an interest
merely as security for the performance of an obligation. There shall be one vote per lot and each
lot owner shall be a member of the Homeowners Association. Membership shall be appurtenant
to and may be not separated from ownership of any lot; ownership of such lot shall be the sole
qualification of membership.

The purpose of Park Ridge Homeowners Association shall be to own and maintain the
common area and green spaces of the development, including but not limited to Outlots 1 & 2
(retention ponds) and surrounding access (whether located in said subdivision or serving said
subdivision but located outside thereof) and such other activities set forth in the Articles of
Incorporation and Bylaws of the Association. Such ownership and maintenance shall include, but
not limited to, of common neighborhood cluster mailboxes, mowing, watering, include upkeep of
any underground sprinkler system, snow removal of common areas, maintenance of the retention
pond(s) water retention/detention area(s) including water quality issues set forth by the City of
Cedar Falls in the Maintenance and Repair Agreement for Park Ridge Estates Subdivision.
Initially, the Developer, BJW Holdings, LLC, shall perform the actual construction duties to
establish the common area, green spaces, entrance, pond and surrounding access area.

The annual dues for the Association shall initially be set at $300 per lot per year
beginning in ____________ 1, 2019. The Developer, BJW Holdings, LLC, shall be exempt
from any dues expense. The Association shall have the ability and authority to adjust annual
dues as it deems appropriate to carry out the maintenance duties as described above.

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED IN PLAT

1. The Street(s) shown on the attached plat, and referred to as Tract A, will be brought to
City grade and that the street will be thirty-one (31) feet, back of curb to back of curb, with
approved hard surface pavement in accordance with the City of Cedar Falls, Standard
Specifications unless otherwise specified as per approved construction plans.

2. Sanitary sewer, together with the necessary manholes and sewer service lines to all
lots in the plat will be provided.

3. That underground utilities, as required by the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of
Cedar Falls, Iowa, shall be installed.

4. That city water will be provided to all lots as required by the Cedar Falls Municipal
utilities.

5. That municipal fire hydrant(s) will be provided as required by the Cedar Falls Public
Safety Department.

50

Item 4.



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 6

6. That Storm sewer will be provided as specified by the City Engineer.

7. That handicap ramps will be provided as required by law.

8. That the work improvements called herein shall be in accordance with the
specifications of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and performed under the supervision of the City
Engineer. In the event that the developer, BJW Holdings, LLC, it grantees and assigns fail to
complete said work and improvements called for within one (1) year from the date of the
acceptance of said final plat by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, the City may then make
improvements and assess the costs of the same to the respective lots. The undersigned, for
themselves, their successors, grantees and assigns, waive all statutory requirements of notice of
time and place of hearing and agree that the City may install said improvements and assess the
total costs thereof against the respective lots.

9. That the City may perform said work, levy the cost thereof as assessments, and the
undersigned agree that said assessments so levied shall be a lien on the respective lots with the
same force and effect as though all legal provisions pertaining to the levy of such special
assessments have been observed, and further authorize the City Clerk to certify such assessments
to the County Auditor as assessments to be paid in installments as provided by law.

10. The Developer shall construct and install all required public improvements within the
subdivision plat, to conform with approved construction plans which meet the specifications of
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Such required public improvements shall meet the following
requirements:

(a) Shall be constructed and installed in a good and workmanlike manner;
(b) Shall be free of defects in workmanship or materials;
(c) Shall be free of any conditions that could result in structural or other failure of

said improvements;
(d) Shall be constructed and installed in accordance with the design standards and

technical standards established for such public improvements by the City and by Cedar Falls
Utilities;

(e) Shall be constructed and installed in strict compliance with the minimum
acceptable specifications for the construction of public improvements set forth in the Cedar Falls
Code of Ordinances, including without limitation, Chapter 24, Subdivisions, and as such
specifications shall be recommended for approval by the City Engineer from time to time, and
approved by the city council.

The Developer’s construction plans are now on file in the Office of the City Engineer.

51

Item 4.



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 7

SIGNED and DATED this _______ day of _______________, 2019.

BJW Holdings, LLC

___________________________
Brian J. Wingert, Manager

STATE OF IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY: ss

On this ____ day of ______________, 2019, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public
in and for the State of Iowa, personally appeared Brian J. Wingert, Manager of BJW Holdings,
LLC, to me known as the identical persons named in and who executed the foregoing instrument
and acknowledged that they executed the same as their voluntary act and deed on behalf of BJW
Holdings, LLC.

______________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa

52

Item 4.


	Top
	1. Planning and Zoning Minutes
	07-10-2019 P and Z Minutes

	2. PC-2 District Site Plan Review - 918 Viking Road
	1_Gym Outbuilding #4 Site Plan Review Staff Report to P&amp;Z on 07-24-19
	2_ZoningLocationMap
	3_Overall Site Layout
	4_5582 - Viking Rd SE Building-6-14-19
	5_Building 4 Shell
	6_landscape plan 918 viking rd

	3. HWY-1 District Site Plan Review
	1_Revised Rouse Development Site Plan staff report to P&amp;Z on 07-24-19
	2_ZoningLocationMap
	3_Revised Site Plan
	4_Exterior Perspectives
	5_7-17-19 Planting Plan

	4. Park Ridge Estates Final Plat
	1_P&amp;Z staff report for park ridge estates fp on 7-11-19
	2 ZoningLocationMap
	3 Park Ridge Estates Final Plat
	4 Deed of Dedication

	Bottom

